
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


1. Call to order 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law 
4. Public comment 
5. Communications 
6. Approval of minutes of August 22, 2023 
7. R-xxx-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers for proforma analysis related to 211 S Water St.  
8. R-xxx-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Incremental District No 10. – 


Downtown Overlay       
9. Discussion and possible action regarding revised Emmi Roth Tax Incremental Financial 


application** 
10. Discussion and possible action regarding Debt Issue 2023A presale spreadsheet 09-06-2023 


timing of 2023 bond issue 
11. Discussion and possible action regarding unpaid June 2023 room taxes due to ordinance change 


in rates 
12. R-xxx-2023 Contract for appraisal services to determine appropriate market rental value for 600 


S. Fourth St. 
13. Future agenda items          


a. September 26, 2023 
i. August fiscal reports 


ii. R-xxx-2023 Debt Issue 2023A – Bond issue 
iii. R-xxx-2023 Debt Issue 2023B – Promissory note issue 
iv. DPW site remediation bid specs (time sensitive item) 
v. Investment portfolio review 


vi. Payment in Lieu of Taxes agreement with Stoughton Housing Authority 
b. October 10, 2023  


 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - Amended 


Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


 


Meeting of the: 


Date & time: 


 
Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 6:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting of the Finance Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting 
In person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth St.) 
Virtual:  You can attend the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82136181790?pwd=dFI5dWpvWmhmRFQ0bXdNV0lQVmlFZz09 
Meeting ID: 821 3618 1790 Passcode: 001882 
One tap mobile +13092053325,,82136181790#,,,,*001882# US  
Live-streamed:  https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12.   
The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
Note:  Effective September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV will be 981. 
 
Members:   Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice-Chair), Leonard “Ozzie” Doom, Ben Heili, Greg 
Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio), and David Thomas 







i. Single Audit report 
ii. R-xxx-2023 Establish city policy for facility rental charges to Stoughton Utilities 


and Emergency Medical Services 
c. To be determined – Creation and/or modification of city policies 


i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments and related interest rate 
ii. Updates to fund balance policy, including policy specific to K-9 Fund 


iii. Potential revisions of Capital Improvement Plan and Debt Management policy 
iv. Update policy regarding city asset disposal  


d. To be determined – Other 
i. Update regarding marketing of ARPA business revolving loan program 


ii. Yahara Riverfront Development developer and property sale agreements 
iii. Municipal Court receivables / debt collection policy 


14. Adjourn 
 
**The Finance Committee may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1) (e) Deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The 
Finance Committee may reconvene in an open session to discuss and take action on the subject matter 
discussed in the closed session. ** 
 


 


     Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the Director of Finance’s office at (608) 873-6691 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
     In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the 
internet should also contact the Director of Finance’s office at the number above at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  


 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL 

















CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Enter into an agreement with Ehlers for a proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St. 


Committee 
Action: 


Fiscal Impact:   


Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 09/12/2023 
 


$3,000 – Anticipate requesting reimbursement from developer 


File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date: 09/26/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City received an application for Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF) on 
August 23, 2023 for renovations on the property at 211 S. Water Street in the amount of $514,250; 
and, 


WHEREAS, staff has recommended contracting with Ehlers to provide a proforma review 
of the Tax Increment Financing application; and, 


WHEREAS, Ehlers has provided the attached documentation regarding pricing for a 
proforma review; and, 


WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the developer will be requested to reimburse the City of 
the cost of the proforma review;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that City staff is authorized to enter into a 
contract with Ehlers to perform a proforma analysis of the Tax Incremental Financing application 
for the property located at 211 S. Water St. 


Council Action:         Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:        Accept    Veto  


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 
Council Action:         Override Vote 







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dustin Oler <DOler@walkerdunlop.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 5:08 PM
To: Dave Ehlinger
Cc: Justin Hanson; Tim Swadley
Subject: 211 S Water Street - TIF Application
Attachments: Stoughton TIF Policy and Application.pdf; The Shop Lofts Underwriting TIF MODEL.xlsx; 211 S Water 


Map.pptx


Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organiza on. Exercise cau on when opening a achments or clicking links, 
especially from unknown senders. 


Dave, 
 
Jus n Hanson and I have been working on re-zoning 211 S Water Street for residen al use.  Our current plans call to 
retrofit the building into 18-mul family units, while preserving the historic character of the building. We have moved 
past the planning commission with a posi ve recommenda on to City Council and are on the docket for the September 
12th mee ng.  As a part of our request we are applying for TIF financing and the crea on of a new TID, and have been 
working with Mayor Swadley and Gary Becker on that front.   
 
A ached please find our TIF Applica on, financial model, and site map.  We should have complete exterior renderings in 
the coming weeks. 
 
Please let me know if you need anything further at this me.  We look forward to working with you on this request. 
 
Thank you,   
 
 


Dustin Oler 
Associate Director | Capital Markets  
Walker & Dunlop 
7780 Elmwood Ave, Suite 205 
Middleton, WI 53562 
P: 608-831-6408 M: 608-347-4497  
DOler@walkerdunlop.com 
 
Use our website to send me a file over 20MB. 
   
Follow Us: LinkedIn | Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | YouTube 


  







 
 


Please complete this application, along with such additional documentation and information you wish to supplement this 
application. 


 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 


Name:  211 S Water Street, LLC  


Mailing Address: 4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI 53575 
 


Phone: 608-347-4497 Email: olerdc08@gmail.com 
 


 


Legal Entity (check one):  Individual(s)   Corporation X LLC Partnership 
  


 Other:   


If not a Wisconsin corporation / partnership / LLC, state where organized:   


Will a new entity be created for ownership (check one)? X Yes No 
  


Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more 
pages, if necessary): 


 
Name Address Title Interest 


Dustin Oler 4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI, 53575 Managing Member 31.25% 
Justin Hanson 1743 Apollo Cir, Stoughton, WI 53589 Managing Member 31.25% 
Jim Oler  Member 31.25% 
Adam Polizzi  Member 6.25% 


    
 


DEVELOPMENT TEAM 


Developer: Dustin Oler and Justin Hanson 
 


Architect: One Design & Engineering 


Surveyor:   Contractor:  KSW  
Other Members (add more pages, if necessary):  


Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar 
projects: 
Dustin Oler - 14 years in commercial real estate experience, currently an Associate Director at Walker & Dunlop, one of the largest multifamily capital 


providers in the country. My day-to-day role is helping clients/developers with debt and equity to advance their commercial projects, with an expertise 
in structuring multifamily debt. Justin Hanson - Experienced local business owner, currently working as a commercial real estate lender for ONE Community 
Bank. KSW - Madison-based general contractor with decades of ground up and renovation experience in all asset classes, including multi-family. 


 


 


 
City of Stoughton 


Tax Incremental Financing Application 



mailto:olerdc08@gmail.com





 


CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING 
 


The City has established goals for the use of tax incremental financing. Please indicate which goals you believe 
the proposed project advances. Select all that apply. If checked as applicable, please describe in further detail 
how the goal will be achieved. 


 


☐X  Whether the proposed tax increment district or project assists in the implementation of the City’s 


Comprehensive Plan. Please describe: One of the goals of the Comprehensive Plan was to enhance and maintain the City's 


downtown area through rehabilitation/redevelopment while respecting the City's character, adhering to surrounding uses and 


improving overall appearance. This project does just that as we will look to maintain the historic appearance (brick), while bringing it 


up to "new" quality, while also providing affordable housing to residents and increasing traffic to local businesses. 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would eliminate blight, redevelop underused lands, or 


provide suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. Please describe: The current building 


_a t  211 S Water Street is underutilized and blighted, yet is in a great location for residential development. With this 
redevelopment current residents will have access to brand new, yet affordable housing and downtown business will 
benefit from having 20-30 permanent residents within foot-steps of their doors. We are requesting a designation for a 
blight elimination TID. 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase employment opportunities. Please 


describe: Having access to new, affordable housing downtown increases the chances of new businesses coming to the 


area, helping backfill any vacancies in our downtown commercial space.  It provides business owners a place to live 


close to their business and for more permanent residents to frequent them.  


 
 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the property tax base. Please describe: 
The current assessed value of the building at 211 S Water Street is $276,000. The anticipated assessed value, if sufficient TIF funds are 


obtained to move forward with the development, would be close to $2,000,000, significantly increasing the tax revenue generated at 


the property._ 
 
 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. Please describe: The project, while having no affordability requirements, 


have projected rents that fall below 60% of the area's Average Median Income. 


☐X 
 


provides walkability to all downtown amenities for the tenants. In addition the project will include high 
efficiency appliances, energy efficient lighting and plumbing fixtures, and bike racks.  


 
☐X Whether the proposed tax increment would help encourage unsubsidized private development. Please 


describe It is our belief that there is a lot of redevelopment opportunity in Stoughton, specifically in the downtown area. We believe 


this project could be the catalyst for future development or redevelopment and we would be interested in working with the city on that 


going forward.  


Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would include sustainability measures that will promote 


a healthy environment, including measures to reduce climate change impacts. Please describe The location 







PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 


Address and / or Parcel Number(s) of proposed development: 211 S Water Street, Stoughton, WI  
 


Overall Project Summary and Objectives (include information describing the current and proposed zoning and uses of 
the site; description of end users; estimated jobs created; anticipated value created; consistency with TID project plan, City 
Comprehensive Plan, zoning ordinance, subdivision ordinance, and other City ordinances and policies as applicable; 
whether there has been or will be outreach to the public or neighborhood): 


 
The overall goal of the project is to redevelop the existing industrial/warehouse building into 18 multifamily residences. We are working 
through the re-zoning process with a request for PD Zoning to allow for first floor residential use, without a commercial component. 
The exterior and main structural components of the building would remain, with the goal of preserving the brick exterior and many 
interior structural components, while bringing all components up to a level of new construction. The finished exterior will have a similar 
look to the adjacent brick buildings, while having a modern touch with new windows, doors, and sandblasted brick or another similar 
façade. The theme of the project would be industrial style finishes, with high ceilings, and exposed steel and brick to keep the historic 
feel intact. The unit mix, as currently configured, would include 1 studio loft unit, 4 micro one-bedroom units, 10 standard one-bedroom 
units, 2 two-bedroom units, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The total rentable square feet would be 11,582 with an average unit size of 643 
square feet. The projected rents would all fall under 60% of the Area Median Income while increasing the assessed value by ~7x. The 
project is in line with TID project plans and the City Comprehensive Plan by enhancing the quality of a downtown building, while 
staying true to the historic look and feel, providing brand new yet affordable housing to the City's residents, and by bringing more 
permanent residents downtown to increase economic opportunities for future and current businesses. We have reached out to many of 
the local downtown businesses with all responding with positivity and excitement. 


 


 
 
 


For a project that contains housing, describe whether the project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. If the project will not increase the availability of affordable housing, explain 


why it does not, and explain whether the project could include affordable housing if the City provides additional TIF support. 
The project, as currently presented, would contain 18 units with a variety of one, two, and three bedroom floorplans that all have 


projected rents under 60% of the AMI. 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Describe whether the project would include sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, including 


measures to reduce climate change impacts. The location provides walkability to all downtown amenities for the tenants. 
In addition the project will include high efficiency appliances, energy efficient lighting and plumbing fixtures, and bike 
racks. Residents will have an opportunity to work and live downtown thus reducing emissions from their previous 
commute to work and to the shops and restaurants they frequent.  


 
 







 
Describe the request for tax increment financing. 
We are requesting a TIF allocation in the amount of $1,161,000. We understand the City's preferred TIF method is a 


Pay-as-you-go allotment. We would look for 95% of the tax increment to be reimbursed to the project over the 27-year 
payback period. Based on our model this would provide over $61,000 in addition tax revenue to the City during the 
initial 27-year period, before recognizing the entire increment thereafter in perpetuity, which is estimated 7-8x the 
current real estate taxes paid. We understand the 95% increment going towards repayment is higher then the City is 


used to, however as you will see in our model, it is necessary to help close the gap as detailed below. 
 
 


“BUT FOR” TEST 


Why is the requested TIF funding needed? Explain why the project cannot proceed without such support? In addition, 
provide a complete description of the sources and uses of funding for the project. If land will be purchased for the project, 
please describe the purchase price, and supply any appraisal or other documentation available that provides information 
relating to the fair market value of the property. If you are paying more than fair market value for the property, 
please explain why. 
Based on the TIF financial model that is being provided accompanying this Application, our total costs for the project are 
approximately $3,233,000, with a stabilized completion valuation of $2,320,000. This equates to a shortfall of $913,000 
The $1,161,000 in requested TIF funds would provide for $514,250 in day 1 equity if monetized with a bank at current 
interest rates. This still leaves an almost $400,000 gap based on an estimated loan amount able to achieve at current rates.  
At this point we are willing to fill that shortfall with additional equity. The total amount of equity based on our model is 
$1,308,664 or 40.5% of total costs. The margins to complete the project are extremely thin with a estimated return on cost 
at 4.30%, We looked for other ways of closing the financing gap via a WEDC grant, however they require a business to 
operate in the buildings they provide grants for. 
The current building is owned by Jim Oler, my father. We will be purchasing from him via a mix of cash and ownership in 
the new project. I have put together sale comparables for other similar buildings that have recently sold that support a 
market value of $560,000. Those have also been provided with this Application. 


 


 
What economic benefits will result due to the development? 


In addition to the tax increment created by the redevelopment there is huge economic benefits to the downtown 
 


businesses. The project will provide affordable housing for approximately 25 residents who will have walkable access 
to the bevy of local shops and restaurants downtown. Based on what we believe to be conservative projections, the 
economic implications of our tenants eating and shopping locally would bring nearly $150,000 annually in revenue to 
the downtown businesses.







 
 


What non-economic benefits will the development provide to the community? 
The current building at 211 S Water Street isn't up to the standards of some of the neighboring uses. By reinvesting in the 
asset, we would turn a blighted site in the downtown into a Class-A multifamily asset, while keeping the historic character 
intact. The project will allow for new residents to join the community at a price point more can afford. 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


FILING REQUIREMENTS 
 


You must provide all the following items with your signed application: 
 


• Reimbursement Agreement: Provide a signed Reimbursement Agreement in the form approved by the City. 
 


• Site Map: Provide a map that shows the location of the site and its immediate surroundings. 
 


• Project Renderings: Provide preliminary architectural drawings, plans, and renderings for the project. 
 


• Analysis of Financial Need: Each application must include financial analyses that demonstrate the need for TIF 
assistance, including project budgets, proformas describing sources and uses of funds, and revenue projections. 


 
• Project Timeline: An outline of the timeline envisioned for the project to completion. 


 
The City may require additional documentation, including but not limited to market studies, appraisals, and / or other 
documents. 


 
AGREEMENT 


 


By signing this application, Applicant agrees to the following: 
 
• The information submitted is correct. 
• I understand that the City reserves the right to approve or not approve this application, in the City’s sole discretion. 


 
 
Dustin Oler      Managing Member of 211 S Water Street, LLC 


Applicant Printed Name Applicant Title 
 
 


Dustin Oler      8/23/23 
Applicant Signature Date 







City of Stoughton Policy 
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts 


and the Approval of TIF Projects. 
 


1. Purpose. This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether 
to create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to approve 
the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects. The authority to 
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the City Council. 
The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including projects that are 
eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason or no reason. The 
City Council reserves the right to approve or disapprove any project as it deems 
appropriate. 


 
2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider 


whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general 
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF 
financing for a particular project: 


 
A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide 


suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. 
B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed 


without the use of Tax Incremental Financing. 
C. Increase employment opportunities in the City. 
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions. 
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
F. Provide workforce and affordable housing opportunities. 
G. Includes sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, 


including measures to reduce climate change impacts. 
H. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City. 


 
3. TIF District Creation. 


 
A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards 


in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended. (See Appendix 
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist). 


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a 
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate. 


 
4. TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council, 


following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director shall 
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing 







the following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and 
City Council before approving any TIF project: 


 
A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District? 
B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of 


TIF? 
C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support 


the level of TIF investment? 
D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary 


to make the project financially viable? 
E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be 


included in the agreement? 
F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum) 


appropriate? 
G. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or the City Council 


deem appropriate. 
 


5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow 
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, the City 
Council must first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a 
number of electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for 
governor at the last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming 
to the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of 
the resolution, the City may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF 
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or 
borrowing to the city electors for their approval. 


 
6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development agreements 


within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to final approval 
by the City Council. 


 
7. Suspension of Policy. This policy shall be followed in all cases, except where the 


common council approves deviating from this policy by a vote of two-thirds of all 
members of the common council. 







211 S 
Water 
Street







Water Street Lofts
Stoughton, WI


Number of Units:
18


Per Unit Per Unit % of EGI
Proforma 
Scenario


Gross Potential Rent $241,200 $13,400 $241,200 $13,400 102.8% NOI $138,913 $7,717
Vacancy ($12,060) ($670) ($12,060) ($670) -5.1% 5% Debt Service $115,424
Concessions $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 0% Cash Flow $23,488
Bad Debt $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 0% DSCR 1.203
Net Rental Income $229,140 $12,730 $229,140 $12,730 97.7% 5% Debt Yield 9.85%


Cap Rate 6.00% Per Unit Value + TIF and Grant
Other Income: Valuation $2,320,000 $129,000 $2,834,250


Resident Parking $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
Storage $0 $0 $0 $0 Loan Amount $1,410,000 $78,000
Pet $3,510 $195 $3,510 $195 1.5% LTV 60.8%
Pet Deposits (one time) $900 $50 $900 $50 0.4% LTC 43.6% 2022 Assessment: 249,600$                      
TIF Income $0 $0 $0 $0 Term 5 2022 Taxes: 4,286$                          
Misc. Income $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Amortization 30 Mil Rate: 1.717256%


Total Other Income $5,410 $301 $5,410 $301 2.3% SOFR 5.00%
Spread 2.25% Est. Fair Market Value 257,082$                      


Effective Gross Income $234,550 $13,031 $234,550 $13,031 100.0% Interest Rate 7.25% Assessment Ratio 97.09%
Loan Constant 8.19%


Expenses: 5.0% 5.0% Annual Payment $115,424 $74,000
Management Fee $11,728 $652 $11,728 $652 5.0% 5% Ending Balance $1,330,741
Real Estate Taxes $34,345 $1,908 $34,345 $1,908 14.6%
Insurance $7,000 $389 $7,000 $389 3.0% SOURCES:


Advertising & Promotion $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Proposed Loan $1,410,000
Office Expense $500 $28 $500 $28 0.2% TIF Funding $514,250 15.9%  
Legal & Audit $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Grant Funding $0
Misc. Admin. $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Equity: $1,308,664 40.5%


Administration Expense $2,500 $139 $2,500 $139 1.1% TOTAL SOURCES: $3,232,914
Commissions $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6% USES:
Maintenance $7,500 $417 $7,500 $417 3.2% Construction Costs $3,232,914


Payroll $9,000 $500 $9,000 $500 3.8% Closing Costs $0
Gas/Electric - Vacant/common area $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6% TOTAL USES: $3,232,914 $2,972,914 Developer Shortfall Equity
Cable & Internet $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% $398,664 $912,914 < Without TIF or Grant


Utilities $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6%
Water & Sewer $5,465 $304 $5,465 $304 2.3%


Trash Removal $2,500 $139 $2,500 $139 1.1% Construction Costs: $2,458,664
Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Land: $560,000 $31,111
Bldg R&M $10,000 $556 $10,000 $556 4.3% Hard Costs: $2,199,750 $122,208
Painting/Decorating $2,000 $111 $2,000 $111 0.9% Soft Costs: $279,189 $15,511
Cleaning/Turnover $4,500 $250 $4,500 $250 1.9% Developer Fee: 6.00% $193,975 $10,776
Fire/Security $500 $28 $500 $28 0.2% Total Costs: $3,232,914 $179,606
Garage/Parking $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
Elevator $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Equity: $1,308,664
Snow Removal $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4%
Landscaping/Grounds $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Return on Costs: 4.30%


Repairs & Maintenance $20,500 $1,139 $20,500 $1,139 8.7% Cash on Cash: 1.79%
Total Operating Expenses $92,037 $5,113 $92,037 $5,113 39.2%
Cap Ex $3,600 $200 $3,600 $200 1.5% $200
Total Expenses $95,637 $5,313 $95,637 $5,313 40.8%


Net Operating Income $138,913 $7,717 $138,913 $7,717 59.2%


Total R&M and Payroll $29,500 $1,639 $29,500 $1,639 12.6%
Before Taxes & CapEx $57,692 $3,205 $57,692 $3,205


Taxes


Budget Proforma Loan Proforma





		08 R-136-2023 Enter into agreement for proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St.pdf

		211 S Water St TIF request 2023.pdf

		08 TIF Application - 211 S Water St.pdf

		08 TIF Application - 211 S Water St.pdf

		Stoughton TIF Policy and Application.pdf

		Name:  211 S Water Street, LLC

		4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI 53575

		Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more pages, if necessary):

		DEVELOPMENT TEAM



		Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar projects:

		CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING

		PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION

		“BUT FOR” TEST

		FILING REQUIREMENTS

		AGREEMENT





		211 S Water Map (002) [Read-Only].pdf



		The Shop Lofts Underwriting TIF MODEL.pdf












 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment District No. 10 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 09/12/2023 
                                                                


 
Fiscal Impact:   $17,000 – Anticipate requesting reimbursement from developer 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 


 
Date: 09/26/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City authorized staff to commence processing a request for Tax 
Incremental Financing (“TIF”) for the property located at 211 S. Water St; and, 


 WHEREAS, the above property is currently located within TIF District #4 – Downtown 
which could incur project costs through March 23, 2021 and is scheduled to close in 2026; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City’s economic development consultant anticipates several more TIF 
requests will be submitted in the coming months for various downtown properties; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City’s economic development consultant has recommended the creation 
of a new overlay TIF District if the Finance Committee and Common Council are included to 
support the 211 S. Water St and other potential projects; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City’s municipal advisor, Ehlers, has provided the attached 
documentation regarding proposed services and pricing for the creation of TIF District #10 – 
Downtown Overlay; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City will seek reimbursement from the developer to cover the cost of the 
TIF District; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommends authorizing City staff 
to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Incremental Financing District No. 10 – 
Downtown Overlay;  


  


 


 


 







 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton authorizes City staff to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment 
Financing District No 10. – Downtown Overlay. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship 1
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.                                                                                                             August 29, 2023


August 29, 2023


Dave Ehlinger, Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
207 S. Forrest Street
Stoughton, WI 53589


Re: Written Municipal Advisor Client Disclosure with the City of Stoughton (“Client”) for
2024 TID No. 10 Creation (“Project” Pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42)


Dear Dave:


As a registered Municipal Advisor, we are required by Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(MSRB) Rules to provide you with certain written information and disclosures prior to, upon
or promptly, after the establishment of a municipal advisory relationship as defined in
Securities and Exchange Act Rule 15Ba1-1.  To establish our engagement as your Municipal
Advisor, we must inform you that:


When providing advice, we are required to act in a fiduciary capacity, which includes a1.
duty of loyalty and a duty of care.  This means we are required to act solely in your
best interest.
We have an obligation to fully and fairly disclose to you in writing all material actual or2.
potential conflicts of interest that might impair our ability to render unbiased and
competent advice to you.  We are providing these and other required disclosures in
Appendix A attached hereto.


As your Municipal Advisor, Ehlers shall provide this advice and service at such fees, as
described within Appendix B attached hereto.


This documentation and all appendices hereto shall be effective as of its date unless
otherwise terminated by either party upon 30 days written notice to the other party.


During the term of our municipal advisory relationship, this writing might be amended or
supplemented to reflect any material change or additions.


We look forward to working with you on this Project.


Sincerely,


Ehlers & Associates


David Ferris,CPA
Senior Municipal Advisor


_______________


1   This document is intended to satisfy the requirements of MSRB Rule G-42(b) and Rule G-42(c).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 1
Ehlers                                                                                                                                               August 29, 2023


Appendix A


DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST/OTHER REQUIRED
INFORMATION


Actual/Potential Material Conflicts of Interest
Ehlers has no known actual or potential material conflicts of interest that might
impair its ability either to render unbiased and competent advice or to fulfill its
fiduciary duty to Client.


Other Engagements or Relationships Impairing Ability to Provide Advice
Ehlers is not aware of any other engagement or relationship Ehlers has that might
impair Ehlers’ ability to either render unbiased and competent advice to or to fulfill
its fiduciary duty to Client.


Affiliated Entities
Ehlers offers related services through two affiliates of Ehlers, Bond Trust Service
Corporation (BTSC) and Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP).  BTSC provides paying
agent services while Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP) provides investment related
services and bidding agent service. Ehlers and these affiliates do not share fees.  If
either service is needed in conjunction with an Ehlers municipal advisory
engagement, Client will be asked whether or not they wish to retain either affiliate to
provide service. If BTSC or EIP are retained to provide service, a separate agreement
with that affiliate will be provided for Client’s consideration and approval.


Solicitors/Payments Made to Obtain/Retain Client Business
Ehlers does not use solicitors to secure municipal engagements; nor does it make
direct or indirect payments to obtain or retain Client business.


Payments from Third Parties
Ehlers does not receive any direct or indirect payments from third parties to enlist
Ehlers recommendation to the Client of its services, any municipal securities
transaction or any financial product.


Payments/Fee-splitting Arrangements
Ehlers does not share fees with any other parties and any provider of investments or
services to the Client.  However, within a joint proposal with other professional
service providers, Ehlers could be the contracting party or be a subcontractor to the
contracting party resulting in a fee splitting arrangement. In such cases, the fee due
Ehlers will be identified in a Municipal Advisor writing and no other fees will be paid
to Ehlers from any of the other participating professionals in the joint proposal.


Municipal Advisor Registration
Ehlers is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 2
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Material Legal or Disciplinary Events
Neither Ehlers nor any of its officers or municipal advisors have been involved in any
legal or disciplinary events reported on Form MA or MA-I nor are there any other
material legal or disciplinary events to be reported.  Ehlers’ application for permanent
registration as a Municipal Advisor with the (SEC) was granted on July 28, 2014 and
contained the information prescribed under Section 15B(a)(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. It did not list any information on legal or
disciplinary disclosures.


Client may access Ehlers’ most recent Form MA and each most recent Form MA-I by
searching the Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR system (currently
available at http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html) and
searching under either our Company Name (Ehlers & Associates, Inc.) or by using the
currently available “Fast Search” function and entering our CIK number
(0001604197).


Ehlers has not made any material changes to Form MA or Form MA-I since that date.


Conflicts Arising from Compensation Contingent on the Size or Closing of
Any Transaction
The forms of compensation for municipal advisors vary according to the nature of
the engagement and requirements of the client.  Compensation contingent on the
size of the transaction presents a conflict of interest because the advisor may have
an incentive to advise the client to increase the size of the securities issue for the
purpose of increasing the advisor’s compensation. Compensation contingent on the
closing of the transaction presents a conflict because the advisor may have an
incentive to recommend unnecessary financings or recommend financings that are
disadvantageous to the client.  If the transaction is to be delayed or fail to close, an
advisor may have an incentive to discourage a full consideration of such facts and
circumstances, or to discourage consideration of alternatives that may result in the
cancellation of the financing or other transaction.


Any form of compensation due a Municipal Advisor will likely present specific conflict
of interests with the Client.  If a Client is concerned about the conflict arising from
Municipal Advisor compensation contingent on size and/or closing of their
transaction, Ehlers is willing to discuss and provide another form of Municipal
Advisor compensation.  The Client must notify Ehlers in writing of this request within
10 days of receipt of this Municipal Advisor writing.


MSRB Contact Information
The website address of the MSRB is www.msrb.org. Posted on the MSRB website is a
municipal advisory client brochure that describes the protections that may be
provided by MSRB rules and how to file a complaint with the financial regulatory
authorities.



http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html





____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 1
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Appendix B


Scope of Service
Client has requested that Ehlers & Associates assist Client with Tax Increment District
No. 10 (“Project”). Ehlers & Associates proposes and agrees to provide the following
scope of services:


Phase I – Feasibility Analysis
The purpose of Phase I is to determine whether the Project is a statutorily and
economically feasible option to achieve the Client’s objectives. This phase
begins upon your authorization of this engagement and ends on completion
and delivery of a feasibility analysis report. As part of Phase I services, Ehlers &
Associates will:


Consult with appropriate Client officials to identify the Client’s objectives•
for the Project.


Provide feedback as to the appropriateness of using Tax Incremental•
Financing in the context of the “but for” test.


If the Project includes creation of or addition of territory to a district,•
identify preliminary boundaries and gather parcel data from Client.
Determine compliance with the following statutory requirements as
applicable:


Equalized Value test.o


Purpose test (industrial, mixed use, blighted area, in need ofo
rehabilitation or conservation, or environmental remediation).


Newly-platted residential land use test.o


Prepare feasibility analysis report.  The report will include the following•
information, as applicable:


Identification of the type or types of districts that may be created.o


A description of the type, maximum life, expenditure period ando
other features corresponding to the type of district proposed.


A summary of the development assumptions used with respect too
timing of construction and projected values.


Projections of tax increment revenue collections to include annualo
and cumulative present value calculations.


Qualification of the district as a donor or recipient of sharedo
increment, and projected impact of any allocations of shared
increment.


If debt financing is anticipated, a summary of the sizing, structure,o
and timing of proposed debt issues.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 2
Ehlers August 29, 2023


A cash flow pro forma reflecting annual and cumulative district fundo
balances and projected year of closure.


A draft timetable for the Project.o


Identification of how the creation date may affect the district’so
valuation date, the base value, compliance with the equalized value
test, and the ability to capture current year construction values and
changes in economic value.


When warranted, evaluate, and compare options with respect too
boundaries, type of district, project costs and development levels.


Ehlers & Associates will provide guidance on district design withino
statutory limits to creatively achieve as many of the Client’s
objectives as possible and will provide liaison with State Department
of Revenue as needed in the technical evaluation of options.


Present the results of the feasibility analysis to the Client’s staff, Plan•
Commission, or governing body.


Phase II – Project Plan Development and Approval
If the Client elects to proceed following completion of the feasibility analysis,
the Project will move to Phase II. This phase includes preparation of the
Project Plan, and consideration by the Plan Commission1, governing body, and
the Joint Review Board. This phase begins after receiving notification from the
Client to proceed and ends after the Joint Review Board acts on the Project.
As part of Phase II services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Based on the goals and objectives identified in Phase I, prepare a draft•
Project Plan that includes all statutorily required components.


We will coordinate with your staff, engineer, planner or other designated•
party to obtain a map of the proposed boundaries of the district, a map
showing existing uses and conditions of real property within the district,
and a map showing proposed improvements and uses in the district.


Submit to the Client an electronic version of the draft Project Plan for initial•
review and comment.


Coordinate with Client staff to confirm dates and times for the meetings•
indicated within the table beginning on the following page. Ehlers &
Associates will ensure that selected dates meet all statutory timing
requirements and will provide documentation and notices as indicated.


1If Client has created a Redevelopment Authority or a Community Development Authority, that body may fulfill the
statutory requirements of the Plan Commission related to creation or amendment of the district.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 3
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Meeting Ehlers  &  Associates
Responsibility Client Responsibility


Initial Joint
Review Board


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Mail meeting notice, informational
materials, and draft Project Plan to
overlapping taxing jurisdictions.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Designate Client Joint Review
Board representative.


Identify and recommend
Public Joint Review Board
representative for
appointment.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


Prepare Notice of Public Hearing and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


For blighted area districts and in need
of rehabilitation or conservation
districts, provide a format for the
required individual property owner
notification letters.


Attend hearing to present draft
Project Plan.


Prepare and mail individual
property owner notices (only
for districts created as
blighted area, or in need of
rehabilitation or
conservation).


Prepare meeting minutes.


Plan
Commission


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Plan
Commission consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Distribute Project Plan &
resolution to Plan
Commission members in
advance of meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Governing
Body Action


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for
governing body consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Provide Project Plan &
resolution to governing body
members in advance of
meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 4
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Joint Review
Board Action


Mail meeting notice and copy of final
Project Plan to overlapping taxing
jurisdictions.


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present final
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Joint
Review Board consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Throughout the meeting process, provide drafts of the Project Plan and•
related documents in sufficient quantity for the Client’s staff, Plan
Commission, governing body and Joint Review Board members.


Provide advice and updated analysis on the impact of any changes made•
to the Project Plan throughout the approval process.


Phase III – State Submittal
This phase includes final review of all file documents, preparation of filing
forms, and submission of the base year or amendment packet to the
Department of Revenue.  This phase begins following approval of the district
by the Joint Review Board and ends with the submission of the base year or
amendment packet. As part of Phase III services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Coordinate with Client’s assessor and other staff as necessary to obtain•
parcel valuations, parcel data and other information needed for preparation
of the State forms that must be filed as part of the base year or
amendment packet.


Assemble and submit to the Department of Revenue the required base•
year or amendment packet to include a final Project Plan document
containing all required elements and information.


Provide the Client with an electronic copy of the final Project Plan (and up•
to 15 bound hard copies if desired).


Provide the municipal Clerk with a complete electronic and/or hard copy•
transcript of all materials as submitted to the Department of Revenue for
certification.


Act as a liaison between the Client and the Department of Revenue during•
the certification process in the event any questions or discrepancies arise.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 5
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Compensation - Flat Fee Portion of Engagement
In  return  for  the  services  set  forth  in  the  “Scope  of  Service,”  Client  agrees  to
compensate Ehlers & Associates as follows:


Phase:


Cost of
Creation
without


Proforma
Services


Cost of
Creation with


Proforma
Services


Phase I $  6,500 $  3,500
Phase II $  8,000 $  8,000
Phase III $  2,500 $  2,500
Total $ 17,000 $ 14,000


Pricing for scenario where proforma services are provided includes a $3,000•
discount for Phase I services based on client’s separate engagement of Ehlers &
Associates to review the developer’s proforma for the project related to the
District. If for any reason that work does not proceed or cannot be completed
$3,000 will be added to the cost of Phase I for a total fee of $17,000.


Phase I base fee includes up to five financial scenarios. Additional scenarios will•
be run as needed at a cost of $750/scenario.


In the event Client determines not to proceed with the Project once a Phase has•
been authorized, but prior to that Phase’s completion, the compensation due for
that Phase will be prorated to reflect the percentage of the work completed.


Compensation – Hourly Services Portion of Engagement
Ehlers & Associates will bill Client on an hourly basis for services requested by Client
in conjunction with the engagement that are not specifically identified in the Scope
of Service set forth in this letter. Examples would include:


Review of development agreements related to the District’s Project Plan and•
participation in negotiations with developers.


Hourly services will be billed at a rate that is dependent upon the task/staff required
to meet Client request at no less than $125.00/hour and not to exceed $350.00/
hour.


Payment for Services
For  all  compensation  due  to  Ehlers  &  Associates,  we  will  invoice  Client  for  the
amount  due  at  the  completion  of  each  Phase.  Our  fees  include  our  normal  travel,
printing,  computer  services,  and  mail/delivery  charges.  The  invoice  is  due  and
payable upon receipt by the Client.


Client Responsibility
The following expenses are not included in our Scope of Services, and are the
responsibility of Client to pay directly:







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 6
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Services rendered by Client’s engineers, planners, surveyors, appraisers,•
assessors, attorneys, auditors, and others that may be called on by Client to
provide information related to completion of the Project.


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the Project Plan.•


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the base year or amendment•
packet.


Publication charge for the Notice of Public Hearing and Notices of Joint Review•
Board meetings.


Legal opinion advising that Project Plan contains all required elements.•
(Normally provided by municipal attorney).


Preparation of District metes & bounds description. (Needed in Phase III for•
creation of new districts, or amendments that add or subtract territory).


Department of Revenue filing fee and annual administrative fees. The current•
Department of Revenue fee structure is:


Current Wisconsin Department of Revenue Fee Schedules


Base Year Packet $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
or Subtraction $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
and Subtraction $2,000


Base Value Redetermination $1,000


Amendment Packet No Charge


Annual Administrative Fee $150


The above Proposal is hereby accepted by City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, by its
authorized officer:


_________________________________ ___________________________________
Signed Title





		08 R-xxx-2023 Enter into agreement with Ehlers to create TID No 10 dpe.pdf

		08 R-xxx-2023 Enter into agreement with Ehlers to create TID No 10.pdf

		09 R-137-2023 Enter into agreement with Ehlers to create TID No.pdf

		Stoughton_City of_WI_Dane County_ProjectDisclosure_2024 TID No. 10 Creation_08_29_2023_06_56_06.pdf












Financing Plan / Issue Sizing
GO Bonds


2023
Projects


Street Improvement Projects 3,737,887
Fire Department Equipment 452,630
Library Projects 50,000
Park Projects 957,725
Stormwater Utility 966,470


Project Needs 6,164,712


Issuance Expenses
Municipal Advisor 38,500
Bond Counsel 25,000
Rating 17,500
Paying Agent 850
Underwriter Fees 78,813


Total Funds Needed 6,325,375


Less Interest Earnings1 (20,549)


Rounding 175


Size of Issue 6,305,000


Notes:
1 Interest on project funds is calculated at 4.00% for 1 months.







Projected Impact of Proposed Projects


Less Abatements


YEAR YEAR Prin (4/1) Rate Interest Total YEAR
2022 1,286,313,900 7.28% 5,202,535    (1,636,982)     3,565,553    2022                                              3,565,553    2022
2023 1,499,453,200 16.57% 5,313,136    (1,334,462)     3,978,674    2023                                                                                                                                3,978,674    413,121       2023
2024 1,706,623,300 13.82% 5,040,202    (1,613,155)     3,427,047    2024 820,000      3.85% 210,385     1,030,385    (70,545)        (4,143)     (74,688)          955,697       4,382,744    404,070       2024
2025 1,740,755,766 2.00% 5,026,239    (1,592,171)     3,434,068    2025 205,000      3.85% 222,964     427,964       (74,372)        (74,372)          353,592       3,787,660    (595,084)     2025
2026 1,775,570,881 2.00% 4,825,255    (1,463,416)     3,361,839    2026 205,000      3.75% 215,174     420,174       (73,042)        (73,042)          347,132       3,708,971    (78,689)        2026
2027 1,811,082,299 2.00% 4,365,901    (1,419,427)     2,946,474    2027 255,000      3.65% 206,677     461,677       (71,747)        (71,747)          389,930       3,336,404    (372,567)     2027
2028 1,847,303,945 2.00% 3,273,328    (1,310,479)     1,962,848    2028 285,000      3.60% 196,893     481,893       (75,388)        (75,388)          406,505       2,369,353    (967,051)     2028
2029 1,884,250,024 2.00% 2,885,034    (1,111,099)     1,773,935    2029 285,000      3.65% 186,562     471,562       (73,938)        (73,938)          397,624       2,171,559    (197,795)     2029
2030 1,921,935,024 2.00% 1,931,351    (666,766)        1,264,585    2030 285,000      3.70% 176,088     461,088       (72,468)        (72,468)          388,620       1,653,205    (518,354)     2030
2031 1,960,373,725 2.00% 1,699,624    (566,594)        1,133,030    2031 295,000      3.75% 165,284     460,284       (75,884)        (75,884)          384,400       1,517,430    (135,775)     2031
2032 1,999,581,199 2.00% 1,375,154    (494,429)        880,725        2032 295,000      3.85% 154,074     449,074       (74,174)        (74,174)          374,900       1,255,625    (261,805)     2032
2033 2,039,572,823 2.00% 1,302,635    (492,661)        809,974        2033 295,000      3.85% 142,717     437,717       (72,442)        (72,442)          365,275       1,175,249    (80,377)        2033
2034 2,080,364,280 2.00% 1,299,091    (490,146)        808,945        2034 295,000      4.20% 130,843     425,843       (75,526)        (75,526)          350,317       1,159,262    (15,987)        2034
2035 2,121,971,565 2.00% 959,473       (152,596)        806,876        2035 295,000      4.20% 118,453     413,453       (73,426)        (73,426)          340,027       1,146,903    (12,359)        2035
2036 2,164,410,997 2.00% 954,454       (150,374)        804,080        2036 295,000      4.35% 105,842     400,842       (71,288)        (71,288)          329,554       1,133,634    (13,270)        2036
2037 2,207,699,217 2.00% 885,375       (85,400)          799,975        2037 305,000      4.35% 92,792       397,792       (74,004)        (74,004)          323,788       1,123,763    (9,871)          2037
2038 2,251,853,201 2.00% 881,725       (82,600)          799,125        2038 305,000      4.40% 79,448       384,448       (71,598)        (71,598)          312,850       1,111,975    (11,788)        2038
2039 2,296,890,265 2.00% 262,400       (79,800)          182,600        2039 310,000      4.40% 65,918       375,918       (74,068)        (74,068)          301,850       484,450       (627,525)     2039
2040 2,342,828,070 2.00% 253,200       (77,000)          176,200        2040 315,000      4.60% 51,853       366,853       (76,253)        (76,253)          290,600       466,800       (17,650)        2040
2041 2,389,684,632 2.00% 244,000       (74,200)          169,800        2041 320,000      4.60% 37,248       357,248       (78,148)        (78,148)          279,100       448,900       (17,900)        2041
2042 2,437,478,324 2.00% 239,700       (71,400)          168,300        2042 320,000      4.67% 22,416       342,416       (74,904)        (74,904)          267,512       435,812       (13,088)        2042
2043 2,486,227,891 2.00%                                                                     2043 320,000      4.67% 7,472         327,472       (71,635)        (71,635)          255,837       255,837       (179,975)     2043
2044 2,535,952,449 2.00%                                                                     2044                                                                                                                                                      (255,837)     2044
2045 2,586,671,498 2.00%                                                                     2045                                                                                                                                                                           2045


TOTALS 48,219,811 (14,965,158) 33,254,652 TOTALS 6,305,000 2,589,103 8,894,103 (1,474,850) (4,143) (1,478,993) 7,415,110 40,669,762 TOTALS


NOTES Rates based on AA Sale 8/14/23 + 0.35


Change 
in 


Value
Sewerage 


System 
Projects - Dated 11-16-23


$6,305,000 Funds on 
Hand


Net Debt 
Service Levy


Total 
Projected 


Debt Service 
Less 


Abatements


Existing Debt Payments Projected Debt Service


Equalized Value 
Projection


Total of All 
Obligations


Total 
Abatement 


Sources


Net Debt 
Service Levy


General Obligation Bonds, 2023
Levy Change


Total 
Abatements







Allocation of General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Page 1 of 2 


Issue Issue 1


Purpose


Amount
Dated
Payment Date


Year Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total
2023 0.00% -                   -                -                   
2024 715,000        3.85% 122,574        837,574        35,000          3.85% 35,545      70,545          20,000          3.85% 16,400          36,400          
2025 100,000        3.85% 126,363        226,363        35,000          3.85% 39,372      74,372          20,000          3.85% 18,028          38,028          
2026 100,000        3.75% 122,563        222,563        35,000          3.75% 38,042      73,042          20,000          3.75% 17,268          37,268          
2027 150,000        3.65% 117,950        267,950        35,000          3.65% 36,747      71,747          20,000          3.65% 16,528          36,528          
2028 170,000        3.60% 112,153        282,153        40,000          3.60% 35,388      75,388          20,000          3.60% 15,803          35,803          
2029 170,000        3.65% 105,990        275,990        40,000          3.65% 33,938      73,938          20,000          3.65% 15,078          35,078          
2030 170,000        3.70% 99,743          269,743        40,000          3.70% 32,468      72,468          20,000          3.70% 14,343          34,343          
2031 170,000        3.75% 93,410          263,410        45,000          3.75% 30,884      75,884          25,000          3.75% 13,504          38,504          
2032 170,000        3.85% 86,950          256,950        45,000          3.85% 29,174      74,174          25,000          3.85% 12,554          37,554          
2033 170,000        3.85% 80,405          250,405        45,000          3.85% 27,442      72,442          25,000          3.85% 11,591          36,591          
2034 170,000        4.20% 73,563          243,563        50,000          4.20% 25,526      75,526          25,000          4.20% 10,585          35,585          
2035 170,000        4.20% 66,423          236,423        50,000          4.20% 23,426      73,426          25,000          4.20% 9,535            34,535          
2036 170,000        4.35% 59,155          229,155        50,000          4.35% 21,288      71,288          25,000          4.35% 8,466            33,466          
2037 175,000        4.35% 51,651          226,651        55,000          4.35% 19,004      74,004          25,000          4.35% 7,379            32,379          
2038 175,000        4.40% 43,995          218,995        55,000          4.40% 16,598      71,598          25,000          4.40% 6,285            31,285          
2039 175,000        4.40% 36,295          211,295        60,000          4.40% 14,068      74,068          25,000          4.40% 5,185            30,185          
2040 175,000        4.60% 28,420          203,420        65,000          4.60% 11,253      76,253          25,000          4.60% 4,060            29,060          
2041 175,000        4.60% 20,370          195,370        70,000          4.60% 8,148        78,148          25,000          4.60% 2,910            27,910          
2042 175,000        4.67% 12,259          187,259        70,000          4.67% 4,904        74,904          25,000          4.67% 1,751            26,751          
2043 175,000        4.67% 4,086            179,086        70,000          4.67% 1,635        71,635          25,000          4.67% 584               25,584          


3,820,000$   1,464,316$   5,284,316$   990,000$      484,848$  1,474,848$   465,000$      207,833$      672,833$      


4/1 4/1 4/1


$3,820,000


11/16/2023


Sewerage System Projects - Stormwater Utility
$990,000


11/16/2023


Street Improvement Projects - Levy
$465,000


11/16/2023


Fire Department Equipment - Levy







 Page 2 of 2 


Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Interest Total Outstanding
-                -                   -                    -                   -                      6,305,000     


5,000            3.85% 1,544        6,544            45,000          3.85% 34,322          79,322          820,000        210,385        1,030,385       5,485,000     
5,000            3.85% 1,586        6,586            45,000          3.85% 37,616          82,616          205,000        222,964        427,964          5,280,000     
5,000            3.75% 1,396        6,396            45,000          3.75% 35,906          80,906          205,000        215,174        420,174          5,075,000     
5,000            3.65% 1,211        6,211            45,000          3.65% 34,241          79,241          255,000        206,677        461,677          4,820,000     
5,000            3.60% 1,030        6,030            50,000          3.60% 32,520          82,520          285,000        196,893        481,893          4,535,000     
5,000            3.65% 849           5,849            50,000          3.65% 30,708          80,708          285,000        186,562        471,562          4,250,000     
5,000            3.70% 665           5,665            50,000          3.70% 28,870          78,870          285,000        176,088        461,088          3,965,000     
5,000            3.75% 479           5,479            50,000          3.75% 27,008          77,008          295,000        165,284        460,284          3,670,000     
5,000            3.85% 289           5,289            50,000          3.85% 25,108          75,108          295,000        154,074        449,074          3,375,000     
5,000            3.85% 96             5,096            50,000          3.85% 23,183          73,183          295,000        142,717        437,717          3,080,000     


4.20% -                                     50,000          4.20% 21,170          71,170          295,000        130,843        425,843          2,785,000     
4.20% -                                     50,000          4.20% 19,070          69,070          295,000        118,453        413,453          2,490,000     
4.35% -                                     50,000          4.35% 16,933          66,933          295,000        105,842        400,842          2,195,000     
4.35% -                                     50,000          4.35% 14,758          64,758          305,000        92,792          397,792          1,890,000     
4.40% -                                     50,000          4.40% 12,570          62,570          305,000        79,448          384,448          1,585,000     
4.40% -                                     50,000          4.40% 10,370          60,370          310,000        65,918          375,918          1,275,000     
4.60% -                                     50,000          4.60% 8,120            58,120          315,000        51,853          366,853          960,000        
4.60% -                                     50,000          4.60% 5,820            55,820          320,000        37,248          357,248          640,000        
4.67% -                                     50,000          4.67% 3,503            53,503          320,000        22,416          342,416          320,000        
4.67% -                                     50,000          4.67% 1,168            51,168          320,000        7,472            327,472          -                   


50,000$        9,146$      59,146$        980,000$      422,961$      1,402,961$   6,305,000$   2,589,103$   8,894,103$     


4/1 4/1


11/16/2023 11/16/2023


Library Projects - Levy Park Projects - Levy TOTAL 
$50,000 $980,000







Debt Limit Calculation - 3 Year CIP


46.78% 44.19%
56.70%


63.52%


$0


$10,000


$20,000


$30,000


$40,000


$50,000


$60,000


$70,000


$80,000


$90,000


$100,000


Th
ou


sa
nd


s


City Policy = 80%


Statutory Debt Limit (5% of EV) City Approved Debt Limit Principal Outstanding








 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Contract for appraisal services to determine appropriate market rental value for 600 S. 
Fourth St. 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 09/12/2023 
                                                                


 
Fiscal Impact:   To be determined 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 


 
Date: 09/26/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has been renting space from the City of Stoughton located 
at either 516 S. Fourth St. and 600 S. Fourth St beginning January 1, 1995; and, 


 WHEREAS, the lease for the current property located at 600 S. Fourth St. was amended 
effective March 1, 1998 with annual increases based upon the Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-
U) for the Madison area; and, 


 WHEREAS, the lease for the current property was amended with Resolution R-20-2018 
effective March 1, 2018 through February 28, 2023 with annual increases based upon the CPI-U 
for the Madison area; and, 


 WHEREAS, Boardman Clark, the attorney for Stoughton Utilities, has indicated that any 
facility rent by the City of Stoughton charged to Stoughton Utilities has to be at or below current 
rental market values; and, 


 WHEREAS, a due diligence search by the Finance Department in network files cannot 
locate any documentation for past rental charges being compared to current rental market values; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, Stafford Rosenbaum, the attorney for the City of Stoughton, has 
recommended a market rent analysis be performed by an appraisal firm; and, 


 WHEREAS, the following market rent analysis proposals have been received: 


A.  Landretti & Company, LLC, Middleton, WI - $2,500  
B. INSERT SECOND PROPOSAL INFORMATION HERE; and, 


 WHEREAS, the market rent analysis benefits both the City of Stoughton and Stoughton 
Utilities to help ensure that rent charges paid by Stoughton Utilities is at or below current market 
rates;  







 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council directs the 
appropriate city staff to contract with _________ for a market rental analysis of 600 S. Fourth St; 
and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the fees charged to the City of Stoughton shall be 
split equally with Stoughton Utilities. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 
September 6, 2023 


City of Stoughton 
C/O Matthew Dregne 
Stafford Rosenbaum 
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900 
Madison, Wisconsin 53701 


Dear Mr. Dregne: 


It is my understanding that you have agreed to hire Landretti & Company, LLC to perform market rent 
study for the property located at 600 S Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


The services and the terms of the engagement will include: 


1. A market rent study will be provided in an appraisal report format 
a. An opinion of market rent along with market lease terms will be provided. 
b. The client will be the City of Stoughton and the intended users will be the client and 


Stafford Rosenbaum. 
2. The report will comply with the requirements established in the Uniform Standards of Professional 


Appraisal Practice. 
3. The report will be delivered electronically on or before September 29, 2023. 
4. The fee for the appraisal will be $2,500 with payment to be made no later than 30 days from 


delivery of the completed appraisal. 
5. Any issues, concerns, or discrepancies with the appraisal report must be disclosed to Landretti & 


Company, LLC within six months of the report date otherwise it is assumed the client accepts the 
appraisal and the client does not have any further rights for legal action against Landretti & 
Company, LLC after said period. 


6. Additional services relating to and after the market rent study is complete will be charged at $300 
per hour. 


If you agree to the services, please sign below and return a copy of this engagement letter. Please 
contact me with any questions. 


Best Regards, 
 
 


Dominic Landretti, MAI, AI-GRS 
     Owner – Valuation Consultant 


Landretti & Company, LLC 


I, _______________________________________________, approve the services above. 


________________________________    ______________________ 
Signature        Date 


Landretti & Company, LLC 
PO Box 628543, Middleton, Wisconsin 53562 
Phone: (608) 298-5506  Mobile: (608) 575-6861 
***.landretti.com    Email: appraisal@landretti.com  
 







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Shannon Statz <SStatz@stoughtonutilities.com>
Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 12:40 PM
To: Dave Ehlinger
Subject: FW: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton  (23134-0)


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 


More of the email chain… 
 


Shannon Statz 
Utilities Finance Manager 
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
608-877-7415 
sstatz@stoughtonutilities.com  
 


 
 
 


From: Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 12:37 PM 
To: Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com>; Jill Weiss <JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com> 
Cc: Shannon Statz <SStatz@stoughtonutilities.com>; Charlene Beals <cbeals@boardmanclark.com> 
Subject: RE: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton (23134-0) 
 
Thanks Anita, your summary is spot on.  I think the City should have a reasonable factual basis to support the amount of 
“rent.”  Yesterday Dave mentioned that someone was contacting one or more people familiar with the rental market in 
Stoughton to gather information on this topic.   
 
 


STAFFORD 


ROSENBAUM  


 
Celebrating 


140 
Years 


of 
Excellence 


Matthew P. Dregne  


MDregne@staffordlaw.com |  608.259.2618 |   
2 2 2  W e s t  W a s h i n g t o n  A v e n u e ,  S u i t e  9 0 0  
P . O .  B o x  1 7 8 4  |  M a d i s o n ,  W i s c o n s i n  5 3 7 0 1 - 1 7 8 4  
www.staffordlaw.com |  Profile |  vCard | LinkedIn 


 


Wisconsin member firm of ALFA International,  
the premiere global network of independent law firms. 


  
This is a transmission from the law firm of Stafford Rosenbaum LLP and may contain information which is privileged, confidential, and protected by the attorney-
client or attorney work product privileges. If you are not the addressee, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is 
prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please destroy it and notify me immediately at the telephone number included above..  
 
 







2


From: Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 3:21 PM 
To: Jill Weiss <JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com> 
Cc: Shannon Statz <SStatz@stoughtonutilities.com>; Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>; Charlene Beals 
<cbeals@boardmanclark.com> 
Subject: [External] - Re: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton (23134-0) 
 


Jill, 
 
I just got off the phone with Matt Dregne (I've copied him on this email).  We are in agreement regarding the 
following: 
       
1.  The terms of the rental transaction between the city and Stoughton Utilities should be spelled out in a 
document.  Matt does not think a lease is appropriate; rather, he prefers a memorandum or even a council 
resolution laying out the terms of the deal.  I am fine with that as long as the document (be it a resolution or 
a memorandum) clearly states the applicable terms and conditions and states that the city has determined 
that the rent being charged is at or below market rate.  It is important that Stoughton Utilities be charged a 
reasonable rate so that the city does not run afoul of Wis. Stat. s. 66.0811, pertaining to the proper use of 
electric/water utility revenues. 
 
2.  I explained to Matt the importance of the utility writing a check to the city for the rent.  After I spoke with 
Matt, I spoke again with you.  You explained that the city pays its electric bill to Stoughton Utility via a physical 
check.  The same should occur here.  Matt is ok with that. 
 
One issue Matt and I did not discuss was the allocation of rent responsibility among the various "tenants" in 
the building.  As we discussed, it is reasonable for the rent to be allocated among the tenants based on the 
percentage of the space within the building that is exclusively used by each tenant. 
 
 
Matt, 
 
Please weigh in if I've failed to accurately reflect the gist of our conversation today. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Anita 
 


 


 


  
ANITA T. GALLUCCI (SHE /HE R)  
ATTORNEY 
  
DIRECT +1 608-283-1770 
PHONE +1 608-257-9521 
FAX 608-283-1709 
AGALLUCCI@BOARDMANCLARK.COM  
BOARDMANCLARK.COM  


 


BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP  
1 S  PINCKNEY ST STE 410 
PO BOX 927 
MADISON, WI  53701-0927 


 


 
This is a transmission from the law firm of Boardman & Clark LLP and may contain information which is privileged, confidential, and protected by the attorney-client and/or attorney work 
product privileges. If you are not the addressee, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is prohibited. If you have received this transmission in 
error, please destroy it and notify us immediately via email at agallucci@boardmanclark.com or via telephone at (608) 257-9521. The sender does not accept liability for any errors or 
omissions in the contents of this message which arise as a result of e-mail transmission.***** 
=-=-= 







3


From: Jill Weiss <JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 2:18 PM 
To: Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com> 
Cc: Shannon Statz <SStatz@stoughtonutilities.com> 
Subject: RE: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton  
  
Anita, 
Just to close the loop, did you talk with Matt Dregne about the lease/transfer thinking?  I ask only because we feel that 
the City Finance Director was looking to follow what Matt had determined to be the best solution going forward.  We 
are anticipating some confusion and just want to know if you had the opportunity to talk with Matt about the issue.  
Thank you!!! 
Jill  
  
Jill M. Weiss, P.E. | Utilities Director 
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
608.877.7423 
920.650.6888 
jweiss@stoughtonutilities.com 
  


 
  


From: Jill Weiss <JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 9:51 PM 
To: Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com> 
Subject: Re: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton  
  
Anita, 
Absolutely!  I understand (I believe) the lease concerns but I don’t like the the transfer approach either.  I feel that it is 
only going to further cause a lack of clear documentation. 
Thank you for your help!  
Jill  
  
  
Jill M. Weiss, P.E. | Utilities Director 
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
608.877.7423 
920.650.6888 
jweiss@stoughtonutilities.com 
  


The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and location.


 
 







4


On Aug 1, 2023, at 5:09 PM, Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com> wrote: 


  
Jill, 
  
Do you mind if I call Matt Dregne to have a better understanding of things from his (and the city’s) point 
of view? 
  


 


<image002.gif> 


  
ANITA T. GALLUCCI (SHE /HE R)  
ATTORNEY 
  
DIRECT +1 608-283-1770 
PHONE +1 608-257-9521 
FAX 608-283-1709 
AGALLUCCI@BOARDMANCLARK.COM  
BOARDMANCLARK.COM  


 


BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP  
1 S  PINCKNEY ST STE 410 
PO BOX 927 
MADISON, WI  53701-0927 


 


 
This is a transmission from the law firm of Boardman & Clark LLP and may contain information which is privileged, confidential, and protected by the attorney-client 
and/or attorney work product privileges. If you are not the addressee, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is 
prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please destroy it and notify us immediately via email at agallucci@boardmanclark.com or via telephone 
at (608) 257-9521. The sender does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message which arise as a result of e-mail transmission.***** 
=-=-= 


From: Jill Weiss <JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 4:47 PM 
To: Anita T. Gallucci <agallucci@boardmanclark.com> 
Cc: Shannon Statz <SStatz@stoughtonutilities.com>; Charlene Beals <cbeals@boardmanclark.com>; 
Julia Potter <JPotter@boardmanclark.com> 
Subject: Stoughton Utilities' Building Rental from City of Stoughton 
  
Anita, 
Please see the attached email.  (I included your memo regarding excess utility revenue because I feel 
that my concerns are tied in part to that memo.)  We need your assistance in determining our best 
approach going forward as it relates to the our renting of a city owned building.  (A lot of this stems 
from our efforts to require the city to document the allocations that we currently pay, these include: 
rent for this building, allocations for CIP projects (what is a city cost and what is a utility cost) and 
‘administrative costs’.  Sadly there is little or no documentation.  I want everything documented and 
clear so that what we are paying is fair/accurate and there is justification for what we pay.  Further, with 
this documentation others in the future can make sense of what is being done and have a basis for 
changes if and when those are appropriate.) 
  
So more about the building rent…  
SU has rented the building (600 S 4th St., Stoughton) that we use for most of our services (warehouse, 
utility office, garage) for many years.  The lease came to an end so there was an effort to renew it.  It is 
my understanding that the city attorney does not feel that a lease is the best appropriate and so a 
different document has been prepared, we believe by the City Finance Director.  I am not sure if the 
lease is the best mechanism or not, but I am not comfortable with the new approach.  Based on the new 
‘transfer’ approach, I feel that this is implying that there are “excess” utility funds.  There are also many 
important elements not covered in this transfer document.   
  
Some additional issues for the utility related to the building…  
In 2018/2019 the Human Resources/Risk Management Department moved into our part of the 
building.  HR pays nothing for their space.  Their footprint has only grown since they have arrived.  Early 
in 2023, EMS requested more of our space as well, which we have not agreed to nor do we have.   The 







5


utility pays 100% of the maintenance for the building – HVAC repairs, roof, parking lot, mowing.  Also, 
the Food Pantry has space in this building but they do not come up in any document -  original lease or 
in the new ‘transfer’ document.  (Further, Food Pantry continues to take up more of our space in this 
building.)  In an effort to document what we should be paying for rent, Shannon Statz worked with a 
‘recommended’ realtor to see what market value is for the space but we were never provided any 
follow up information to this effort.  (This was done about a year ago.) 
  
Can you please help us navigate the best way to formalize an agreement with the city to rent their 
building?  Please note that I don’t expect at this point for all of the issues to be resolved but I want to 
protect the utility from approving anything that could put us at risk for additional unforeseen issues.   
  
Thank you!!!  
Jill  
  
Jill M. Weiss, P.E. | Utilities Director 
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
608.877.7423 
920.650.6888 
jweiss@stoughtonutilities.com 
  
<image003.jpg> 
  
  


 
This message is intended only for the use of the Addressee and may contain information that is PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL. If you are not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in 
error, please erase all copies of the message and its attachments and notify the sender immediately. 







REAL ESTATE LEASE


This Lease Agreement  ( this  " Lease")   is made effective as of January 1,
1995   ( Date) ,   by and between CITY OF STOUGHTON  (" Landlord") ,  and


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY   (" Tenant") .     The parties agree as follows:


PREMISES.     Landlord,   in consideration of the lease payments provided in
this Agreement,   leases to Tenant THE FORMER KING EDWARD BUILDING  ( the


Premises")   located at 516 SO.   FOURTH ST. ,   STOUGHTON,  WI.     53589.


TERM.     The lease term shall commence on January 1,   1995 and shall


terminate on December 31,   1997 .


HOLDOVER.     If Tenant maintains possession of the Premises for any
period after the termination of this Lease   (" Holdover Period") ,  Tenant


shall pay to Landlord a lease payment for the Holdover Period based on
the terms of the following Lease Payments paragraph.     Such holdover


shall constitute a month to month extension of this Lease.


LEASE PAYMENTS.     Tenant shall pay to Landlord LEASE PAYMENTS OF  $ 6960


PER MONTH IN ADVANCE,  ON THE FIRST DAY OF EACH MONTH,  UPON  " MOVE IN" ,


WHICH IS ESTIMATED TO BE ABOUT SEPTEMBER 1995.     Such payments shall be


made to the Landlord at 381 E. MAIN,   STOUGHTON,  WI 53589,   as may be
changed from time to time by Landlord.


LATE PAYMENTS.    Monthly payments not paid by the due date shall bear
interest at 10. 00%  per annum until paid.


POSSESSION.    Tenant shall be entitled to possession on the first day of
the term of this Lease,   and shall yield possession to Landlord on the
last day of the term of this Lease,  unless otherwise agreed by both


parties in writing.


REMODELING OR STRUCTURAL IMPROVEMENTS.    Tenant shall have the


obligation to conduct any construction or remodeling  ( at Tenant' s


expense)   that may be required to use the Premises as specified above,
and may construct such fixtures on the Premises   ( at Tenant' s expense)


that appropriately facilitate its use for such purposes.     Such


construction shall be undertaken and such fixtures may be erected only
with the prior written consent of the Landlord which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.     At the end of the lease term,  Tenant shall be


entitled to remove  ( or at the request of Landlord shall remove)   such


fixtures,   and shall restore the Premises to substantially the same
condition of the Premises at the commencement of this Lease.


MAINTENANCE.    Tenant shall have the obligation to maintain the Premises
in good repair at all times.    This obligation shall include:


the roof,  outside walls,   and other structural parts of the


building
the parking lot,  driveways,   and sidewalks including snow
and ice removal
the sewer,  water pipes,   and other matters related to plumbing


the electrical wiring


the air conditioning system
the heating system



































LEASEBACK ADDENDUM TO
AMENDMENT AND


EXTENSION OF REAL ESTATE LEASE


Agreement made by and between the City of Stoughton ("the City"), and Stoughton
Electric Utility ("the Utility"), as a further amendment to the parties' Real Estate Lease,
which was effective January 1, 1995, and as an addendum to the parties' Amendment and
Extension of Real Estate Lease, as follows:


WHEREAS, The City is the owner of that certain real estate commonly known as
the "Stoughton Municipal Utility Building", located at 600 South Fourth Street,
Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 ("the Utility Building").


WHEREAS, The Utility is the Lessee of the entirety of the Utility Building under
the parties' Real Estate Lease ("the Lease"), effective January 1, 1995. By agreement of
the parties, the Utility has entered into several subleases of portions of the Utility
Building to Uniroyal Engineered Products and Stoughton Area School District.


WHEREAS, The City desires to lease from the Utility certain space in the Utility
Building described herein; the City has made certain improvements to the space to be rented
by the City from the Utility; and the City and the Utility desire to enter into this Leaseback
Addendum to Amendment and Extension of Real Estate Lease or "Leaseback Agreement" for
the purpose of memorializing the terms and conditions of their agreement.


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the
parties hereto, the Utility hereby leases to the City, and the City hereby leases from the
Utility, the portion of the Utility Building described in Section 2 below, for a period, at the
rental and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter specifically set forth:


I. TRIPLE NET LEASE. This Leaseback is a triple net lease. For purposes of this
Leaseback, the term "triple net lease" means the City shall pay the base rent (as defined in
Section 5) and all of the expenses related to the Leaseback Premises (as defined in Section
2) including, but not limited to, all taxes (if any), utilities, and contents insurance, and the
City shall be responsible for its proportionate share of the maintenance and other operating
expenses of the Leaseback Premises, either through the Base Rent (See, 5.A.) or through
direct payment by the City for maintenance and services. The City has paid for the
construction costs of the leasehold improvements in the Leaseback Premises (defined in
Section 3).


2. DESCRIPTION OF LEASEBACK PREMISES. The portion of the Utility Building
which is hereby leased to the City shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Leaseback
Premises". The precise location of the Leaseback Premises is set forth on Exhibit A which
is attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Leaseback Premises shall consist of an area
within the Utility Building, in the northeast quadrant, of approximately 11,625 square feet.
The City shall also have the right to use of the adjacent parking lot ("parking spaces").







3. PRE-LEASEBACK IMPROVEMENTS. The City and the Utility acknowledge that the
City has undertaken and completed a build-out of the Leaseback Premises ("the Leaseback
Improvements"). Certain improvements have been undertaken and completed by the
Utility since the City's purchase of the property and the parties' entry into the Lease,
effective and prior to construction of the Leaseback Improvements ("Pre-Leaseback
Improvements"). Additional improvements were necessary to the Leaseback Premises for
the City's occupancy and use of the Leaseback Premises ("the Leaseback Improvements").


A. ACCOUNTING FOR PRE-LEASEBACK IMPROVEMENTS. The Utility
has accounted to the City for Pre-Leaseback Improvements in and affecting the
Leaseback Premises, and the City and the Utility have worked out terms and conditions
of the City's payment to the Utility for such Pre-Leaseback Improvements.


The City shall pay for Pre-Leaseback Improvements within the Leaseback Premises
during the term of this Leaseback Agreement. The cost of the Pre-Leaseback Improvements
shall be paid by the City to the Utility by amortizing a proportionate share of the Pre-
Leaseback Improvements cost over the term of the Leaseback Agreement. This Pre-
Leaseback Improvements payment shall be converted to a per square foot amount, which
shall be added to the base rent. The Pre-Leaseback Improvements cost shall be fully paid
during the 20 year extension term, at the end of which time the monthly Pre-Leaseback
Improvements cost amount shall be terminated. The City may, at anytime, at its sole option,
pay the Utility the remaining balance due for Pre-Leaseback Improvements. This would
satisfy in full and extinguish this element of monthly rent (under Section. 5.C., below).


B. LEASEBACK IMPROVEMENTS. The City's Leaseback Improvements consist
generally of partitions, flooring, carpeting, plumbing, doors, windows, HVAC equipment,
electrical equipment and facilities, and all related improvements which the City may require
for the Leaseback Premises. Exhibit A includes a layout of the Leaseback Premises showing
the general configuration of the Leaseback Improvements which have been agreed to by the
City and the Utility.


C. CONSTRUCTION AND FINANCING COSTS. It is anticipated that the City
will obtain a loan from a financial institution to finance the Leaseback Improvements and will
pay the entire project cost, including architectural services, fixtures and furnishings costs, and
other related items. The City will also be responsible for all financing costs related to its costs
for the project.


4. TERM.


A. LEASEBACK TERM. The initial term of the Leaseback term shall be
twenty (20) years (the "Initial Term") commencing on March 1, 1998, and expiring
February 28, 2018.


2







B. THE CITY'S RIGHT TO RENEW. The City shall have the right, to be
exercised as hereinafter provided, to renew the term of this Lease for two (2) consecutive
periods of five (5) years each (each such period shall hereinafter be referred to as a
"Renewal Period").


(a) SAME TERMS. Except for the changes in the calculation of Base Rent
and the City's portion of Operating Expenses (as described in Section 5.A. and B.), and
except as otherwise stated herein or agreed by amendment, each Renewal Period shall be on
the same terms, covenants, and conditions as provided in this Leaseback. This Leaseback
Agreement may be extended beyond the second Renewal Period upon the written
agreement of the parties hereto.


(b) MANNER OF RENEWAL. The City shall exercise its rights to renew
in the following manner.


(i) At least three (3) months prior to the expiration of the Initial
Term of this Leaseback, or the first Renewal Period, the City shall notify the Utility as
provided in this Leaseback Agreement of its election to exercise its option to renew the
term of this Leaseback for the first or second Renewal period, as the case may be.


(ii) On the giving of such notice of election to renew as provided in
(i) above, this Leaseback, subject to the terms of this provision, shall be deemed to be
renewed for the applicable Renewal Period, without any further lease or instrument.


5. RENTAL.


A. BASE RENT. The City shall pay to the Utility Leaseback payments of
$1,540.31 per month in advance, on the first day of each consecutive month, until February
28, 2001, the period of the first subterm (two or three year periods within the extension)
("Base Rent"). The twenty (20) year Leaseback Term and the Renewal Period(s) shall be
broken down into three-year and two-year subterms, with the two-year subterm, in each
instance, coming in the final two years of the term or period. This Base Rent for the final
subterm equals $1.59 per square foot per year. The Base Rent shall be adjusted for each
subterm using the same methodology as is used in the City of Stoughton — Stoughton
Electric Utility Real Estate Lease (using the CPI-U for the Madison area for the prior three
years or three percent per year, whichever method results in a larger rate increase), so the
Base Rent adjustment under this Leaseback Agreement and the Utility's rent adjustment
under the Lease shall be the same at all times and subterms.


B. CITY'S OPERATING EXPENSES. The City shall pay to the Utility, in
addition to the Base Rent, the City's proportionate share of Operating Expenses (defined in
Section 5.B.(a) below) paid or accrued during the particular Leaseback month in question.


(a) THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE. As used herein, the City's
proportionate share of Operating Expenses shall be as set forth on the attached Exhibit B


3







(totaling $0.087 per square foot per year currently), for the expenses shown on that exhibit.
The City's proportionate share of operating expenses shall be calculated annually using the
same methodology set forth in Exhibit B. On or before January 1st of each succeeding lease
year the City and Utility shall agree to the City's proportionate share of operating expenses
for the coming calendar year.


(b) PAYMENT OF OPERATING EXPENSES. The City shall pay to
the Utility, on the first day of each calendar month during the entire term and any
renewal(s) of this Leaseback Agreement, an amount equal to 1112th of the City's
proportionate share of Operating Expenses, currently calculated at $84.28 per month.


C. PRE-LEASEBACK IMPROVEMENTS RENT. The City shall also pay to the
Utility on a monthly basis, on the first day of each consecutive month, at the same place that
the Base Rent is to be paid, in addition to the Base Rent and the City's proportionate share of
Operating Expenses, the Pre-Leaseback Improvements rent ("Improvements Rent") during
the initial term of this lease, with each monthly payment of Improvements Rent to be in the
amount of $697.50 ($0.72 per square foot per year), in equal monthly payments, without
provision for change or increase. This payment shall cease at the end of the Initial Term of
this Leaseback Agreement. This rent amount may also be terminated by the City, by its
prepayment of the balance due, as mentioned in Section IA., above (see also, Exhibit I),
which contains a calculation of the initial balance due).


6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES. All costs and expenses for maintaining,
resurfacing, repairing and replacing, cleaning, snow and ice removal, repair and replacement
of exterior lighting fixtures, line painting and landscaping of all vehicle parking areas and
other outdoor common areas for the Utility Building shall be the responsibility of the Utility.
The Leaseback Premises have natural gas and electric services which are metered separately
from the balance of the Utility Building, and all costs of such service shall be paid directly by
the City to the applicable utility company. The City's expenses of occupying a portion of the
Utility Building shall not include costs and expenses related to the maintenance, upkeep, or
repair of lease space within the Utility Building occupied by other tenants, or occupied by the
Utility itself.


7. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING. The City shall be permitted to assign this Lease
to anyone without the prior written approval of the Utility. The City shall have the right to
sublease portions of the Leaseback Premises to subtenants, with each such sublease to be
made expressly subject to all the terms, conditions and provisions of this Lease.


8. SIGNS. The City shall have the right at its own cost and expense, to erect and maintain a
sign or signs advertising the business and/or services to be provided in the Utility Building
(including any and all interior or exterior directories) and such sign(s) may be displayed and
placed either in the interior of the Utility Building or on the exterior of the Utility Building.


9, ALTERATIONS, FURNISHINGS, AND REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS.


4







A. ALTERATIONS. The City may without the Utility's prior written consent, make
any alterations, additions or utility installations upon the Leaseback Premises portion of the
Utility Building. The term "utility installations," as used herein, shall include, without
limitation, power sources and panels, space heaters, fluorescent fixtures, conduits and wiring.


B. FIXTURES, FURNISHINGS AND PERSONAL PROPERTY. It is the City's
responsibility, at its expense, to equip the Utility Building with all trade fixtures, furniture,
furnishings, special equipment, movable partitions, shelving and other items of personal
property necessary for the use of the Leaseback Premises by the City and the proper and
efficient operation of the City's businesses.


C. REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. The City shall own the Leaseback
Improvements. The Leaseback Improvements, or any part thereof, may be removed from the
Leaseback Premises by the City. All trade fixtures, furniture, furnishings and signs installed in
the Leaseback Premises by the City and paid for by the City shall remain the property of the
City and may be removed upon the expiration or termination of this Leaseback.


10. MAINTENANCE.


A. THE UTILITY'S OBLIGATIONS. It shall be the Utility's responsibility to keep
and maintain the parking lot and driveways in good, sightly and reasonably attractive
condition; properly illuminated, in accordance with sound safety principles; and reasonably
free of snow and ice, debris and other obstructions, and the Utility shall further be responsible
for maintaining all landscaping. Further, it shall remain the Utility's obligation and
responsibility to, as the parties agreed in the Lease, to maintain the Utility Building and the
Pre-Leaseback Improvements in good repair (see, Real Estate Lease, attached as Exhibit C,
"MAINTENANCE" Section, pages 1-2).


B. OBLIGATIONS REGARDING LEASEBACK PREMISES. The City shall
keep in good condition and repair, these Leaseback Improvements constructed by the City in
the Leaseback Premises, including, but not limited to, the heating, air conditioning,
ventilating, electrical, lighting, plumbing and sewer systems, interior doors, window frames,
interior and any nonstructural wall, partitions, and carpeting, and shall make any
replacements thereof and of all broken and cracked glass which may become necessary
during the initial term of this Leaseback or any Renewal Period.


11. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY.


A. PAYMENT OF RENTS. The City shall pay to the Utility at the time and in the
manner heretofore specified the Base Rent and Operating Expenses herein required.


B. THE UTILITY'S ACCESS. The management and control of the Leaseback
Premises shall be the responsibility of the City. The Utility shall only have access to the
Leaseback Premises under the limited conditions established in this subsection. Upon 24
hours notice or in the event of an emergency, the Utility may access the Leaseback Premises


5







for the purpose of examining those Premises or to make any necessary repairs or alterations to
the Utility Building or the Pre-Leaseback Improvements. In the event of such access, the
Utility may make repairs or alternations to the Leaseback Improvements only in the case of an
emergency,


12. INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES. The City shall obtain, at the City's expense,
beginning on January 1, 1998, and shall maintain through the expiration or termination of this
Lease, the following insurance coverages regarding the Leaseback Improvements and
Premises:


A. PROPERTY. A policy of comprehensive fire, extended coverage, vandalism,
malicious mischief and other endorsements deemed advisable by the Utility insuring the
entire Utility Building, including the Leaseback Premises and all appurtenances thereto.


B. PUBLIC LIABILITY. A policy of commercial general liability insurance
insuring against injury to property, person or loss of life arising out of the use, occupancy or
maintenance of the Leaseback Premises with limits of general liability not less than
$5,000,000 in the aggregate.


C. OTHER. It shall be the City's responsibility to insure any and all of its personal
property, fixtures, furnishings, equipment and any other such items kept on or about the
Leaseback Premises.


13. GENERAL PROVISIONS.


A. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity of any provision of this Leaseback Agreement,
or of its application to any person or circumstances as determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction, shall in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof and each term,
covenant, condition and provision of this Leaseback shall be valid and be enforced to the
fullest extent permitted by Law.


B. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence as to all matters set forth in this
Lease.


C. CAPTIONS. Section captions are not a part of this Leaseback Agreement and
are only for the convenience of the parties.


D. INCORPORATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS. This Leaseback Agreement
and the attached exhibits set forth all the agreements, terms, covenants and conditions
between the Utility and the City concerning the Leaseback Premises and there are no
agreements, terms, or covenants, oral or written, between them other than those herein
contained. No amendment, change or addition to this Lease shall be binding upon the Utility
and the City unless it is in writing and signed by each party.


6







E. BINDING EFFECT; CHOICE OF LAW. This Leaseback Agreement shall
bind the parties, as well as their respective successors and assigns. This Leaseback shall
be governed by and be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the
State of Wisconsin.


CITY OF STOUGHTON:


Dated: ________________ ____________________________________
By: Robert E. Barnett, Mayor


Dated: ________________ ____________________________________
By: Judy A. Kinning, City Clerk


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY:


Dated: ________________ ____________________________________
By: Robert P. Kardasz, Utilities Director


7

















		12 R-xxx-2023 Contract for appraisal services to determine appropriate market rental value for 600 S. Fourth St.pdf

		Engagement Letter - Landretti - Market Rent 600 S Fourth Street Stoughton.pdf

		07c Attorney correspondence 08-04-2023.pdf

		07d Real estate lease 516 S Fourth St 1995-1997.pdf

		07e Leaseback addendum 600 S Fourth St Mar 1998 to Feb 2018.pdf

		15a-Utility Lease 3.1.98 to 2.28.18.pdf

		15b-Leaseback Addendum to Lease 3.1.98 to 2.28.18.pdf



		07f R-20-2018 - Utility Leaseback 2018 March 2018 to February 2023 -  signed.pdf



